American Canal Society Canal Structure Inventory

Structure Canal HAER/CEHR

Pigeon Creek Reservoir, Dam, & Feeder Wabash & Erie / Central /

Southern / Evansville Canal Co. [©°"®"°" Dam remains
State/ Province Indiana County Gibson Designer:
City/T . Contractor:
tyrtown Port Gibson ontractor Forrer, Sturgis & Hosmer
Street Source of Material:
Associated Waterway pijgeon Creek DATES OF CONSTRUCTION
[Topographic Map Princeton Start: 1851 Rebuilding:
UTM Coordinates GPS: 38E16'36.19"N 87E30'32.25"W Completion: 1853 Abandoned: 1869

History & Use in Service (use since Abandonment):

The Pigeon Creek Reservoir was built as an additional source of water for the lower end of the Wabash & Erie Canal. In October 1850,
contractors Forrer, Sturgis & Hosmer sublet this work to Stewart and Rockafellow. The result was a 2,376 foot long embankment across
the valley of Pigeon Creek which formed a lake covering some 1,486 acres with water up to 15 feet deep. The embankment itself was 10
feet wide on the top and had a 1-3/4 to 1 slope. On the west end was a 66 foot long waste weir and on the east end four 2' x 2' sliding
gates which put water into a 500 foot feeder which entered the canal at Port Gibson. In the center of the embankment, 2 inch oak planks
formed a wall which ran from 2 feet below the embankment to 2 feet above the top water line.

In 1851, an injunction was brought by Joshua Davis, George Depriest. Elisha Embree, and others to stop the construction of the
reservoir, or at the very least, remove all of the trees from the site. In October 1851, Judge Hovey, of the Vanderburgh Circuit Court,
ruled in favor of the Trustees. However, 250 acres of land, subject to inundation during high water were eventually cleared of timber. By
May 1853, The Pigeon Creek Reservoir allowed navigation to open to Evansville, 32 miles away. Because of its location, the reservoir
became a frequent site of hunting and fishing trips. Until 1869, the reservoir served as a source of water and allowed navigation to
Evansville to continue long after the canal's abandonment in 1860. In 1869, area residents, long concerned with the reservoir's effect on
their health, cut the embankment west of the feeder gates. The resulting flood destroyed bridges, buildings, and livestock in the valley
below the dam and left the area a marsh for several years afterward.

Description (Visible Remains at Site):
At the present time, County Road 525S runs across the valley of Pigeon Creek on top of the reservoir embankment. A small bridge at
the east end marks the location of the feeder gates and where the embankment was cut in 1869. The former reservoir is now farm land
and is said to be better than the surrounding land.

There appears to be little remaining of Port Gibson.

Other works or events associated with site:

Port Gibson
Present Property Owners: Location of Deed Description:
Edward McClure (1985) Book 149, Page 402

Bibliography, Published, unpublished, maps, photographs
Indiana House Documentary Journal
Evansville Daily & Weekly Journal, Evansville Courier
Evansville Daily Enquirer, Letters from the Indiana State Archives
On site examination, Stormont's HISTORY OF GIBSON COUNTY

IAgencies, Interested National Register, Other Recognition:
Canal Society of Indiana

Investigation made by: Qriginal by: Stan Schmitt, 3900 N. Fulton #1F, Evansville. IN 47710 Date: Retyped:
Address: Retyped by: David G. Barber, 16 Ballou Road, Hopedale, MA 01747 4/12/10

A sketch map or illustration of the site should be included
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	hist: The Pigeon Creek Reservoir was built as an additional source of water for the lower end of the Wabash & Erie Canal. In October 1850, contractors Forrer, Sturgis & Hosmer sublet this work to Stewart and Rockafellow. The result was a 2,376 foot long embankment across the valley of Pigeon Creek which formed a lake covering some 1,486 acres with water up to 15 feet deep. The embankment itself was 10 feet wide on the top and had a 1-3/4 to 1 slope. On the west end was a 66 foot long waste weir and on the east end four 2' x 2' sliding gates which put water into a 500 foot feeder which entered the canal at Port Gibson. In the center of the embankment, 2 inch oak planks formed a wall which ran from 2 feet below the embankment to 2 feet above the top water line.
   In 1851, an injunction was brought by Joshua Davis, George Depriest. Elisha Embree, and others to stop the construction of the reservoir, or at the very least, remove all of the trees from the site. In October 1851, Judge Hovey, of the Vanderburgh Circuit Court, ruled in favor of the Trustees. However, 250 acres of land, subject to inundation during high water were eventually cleared of timber. By May 1853, The Pigeon Creek Reservoir allowed navigation to open to Evansville, 32 miles away. Because of its location, the reservoir became a frequent site of hunting and fishing trips. Until 1869, the reservoir served as a source of water and allowed navigation to Evansville to continue long after the canal's abandonment in 1860. In 1869, area residents, long concerned with the reservoir's effect on their health, cut the embankment west of the feeder gates. The resulting flood destroyed bridges, buildings, and livestock in the valley below the dam and left the area a marsh for several years afterward.
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   There appears to be little remaining of Port Gibson.
	other: Port Gibson
	owners: Edward McClure (1985)
	deed: Book 149,  Page 402
	biblio: Indiana House Documentary Journal
Evansville Daily & Weekly Journal,    Evansville Courier
Evansville Daily Enquirer,    Letters from the Indiana State Archives
On site examination,   Stormont's HISTORY OF GIBSON COUNTY
	agencies: Canal Society of Indiana
	register: 
	by: Original by: Stan Schmitt, 3900 N. Fulton #1F, Evansville. IN 47710
	address: Retyped by: David G. Barber, 16 Ballou Road, Hopedale, MA 01747
	date: Retyped:
4/12/10
	City: Port Gibson


